NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING MEETING and REGULAR MEETING
March 10, 2020
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL
STATE OF TEXAS AGENDA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY
CITY OF MONTGOMERY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Public Hearing and Regular Meeting of the
Montgomery City Council will be held on Tuesday, March 10, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. at the City of
Montgomery City Hall, 101 Old Plantersville Road, Montgomery, Texas for the purpose of considering
the following:

CALL TO ORDER

INVOCATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLLAGS

PUBLIC HEARING(S):

Convene into Public Hearings for the purpose of giving all interested persons the right to appear
and be heard regarding the foilowing:

1. Convene into Public Hearing — By the City Council, acting as the Zoning Board of Adjustment,
regarding a 25-foot front building line variance request instead of the required 35-feet for the
proposed Heritage 111 development along SH 105 west of the Louisa Street intersection (21227 and
21265 Eva Street, Montgomery), as submitted by Cheatham Management.

Adjourn Public Hearing,

2. Receive Final Repert from the Planning and Zoning Commission resulting from their two (2)
Public Hearings held on February 24, 2020, and March 3, 2020, regarding rezoning the following
property from R-1-Single-Family to B-Commercial: for Lot 16, Area D, Montgomery Townsite
Section Four, as submitted by Cheatham Management. (A 0.576-acre tract of land adjacent to
21123 Eva Street, Montgomery, Texas.)

3. Convene into Public Hearing — Rezoning the following property from R-1-Single-Family to B-
Commercial: for Lot 16, Area D, Montgomery Townsite Section Four, as submitted by Cheatham
Management. (A 0.576-acre tract of land adjacent to 21123 Eva Street, Montgomery, Texas.)

Adjourn Public Hearing,

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to
speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss or take any action
on an item, but may place the issuc on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time
allowed per speaker may be limited.




CONSENT AGENDA:

4.

Matters related to the approval of minutes of the Regular Meeting held on February 25, 2020,
Consideration and possible action regarding street closures for the annual Freedom Festival,

Consideration and possible action regarding street closures for the annual Wine and Music
Festival.

Consideration and possible action regarding completion of a one-year warranty period for the
Buffalo Springs Drive Waterline Bridge Crossing Project.

Consideration and possible action regarding approval of an Escrow Agreement by and between
the City of Montgomery and Tony Cook for the proposed Montgomery Townhomes
Development (Dev. No, 2001),

Consideration and possible action regarding the annual renewal of the Mobile Home Park
Application for Cedar Crest Mobile Home Park.

10. Consideration and possible action regarding the correct spelling of McCown Street.

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

I,

12,

13.

14,

IS,

Consideration and possible action, by City Council Acting as the Zoning Board of Adjustment,
regarding a 25-foot front building line variance request instead of the required 35-feet for the
proposed Heritage 111 development along SH 105 west of the Louisa Street intersection (21227 and
21265 Eva Street, Montgomery), as submitted by Cheatham Management.

Consideration and possible action regarding a proposed 11-foot vegetative buffer instead of the
required 25-foot buffer for the proposed Heritage III development.

Update on the Montgomery Music & Mudbugs Festival to be held on March 21, 2020.

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS
AMENDING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS AS DEFINED IN THE CITY CODE OF
ORDINANCES CHAPTER 98, "ZONING,” FOR LOT 16, AREA D, MONTGOMERY
TOWNSITE SECTION FOUR FROM “R-1" SINGLE-FAMILY AND “B” COMMERCIAL
ZONING DISTRICTS, AS FOUND ON THE CITY’S OFFICIAL ZONING MAFP TO “B”
COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION; AND TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL
ZONING MAP; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PASSAGE AND PUBLICATION,

Consideration and possible action regarding award of the following contract(s).
a) Grounds Maintenance; and
b) Right-of-Way Mowing and Lift Stations Weed Control.



















ayviiog m_m_n_ L0

3 .

L4 SN0 TN

W

y.
i

Aramgal
TYL3AA ALYD @O

Q3sn LON ¢t

Sy wo
NDILO3S I1vS ¥=31SdWNad

I

Y3 D DRSO A UGS
— WOToce G370 04 DT
F3AI03 0 AT TILE SO0
=

Dot Bans
TR RO WY EITR
SR R T

Inolcriod s
R TP bl s
THMAL OF UIT3M 1100
e HSNES DLV ALTED S8 M

= HOUEDS 100,
= e 10T O B2 A
] e v RS e 22

DI UL KT

4 wauros
00 et K
U VA B0 T
17 01 GOHOHEIY X
e BB S G VB 26 L

RV
T T3 D

ad b a2 barh o

e P TINY TELS
|1 WO A L0
awa o
"XIVHD A 4ATFD

vkt TR
TR AT

IHNSOTONI Y=1SdWNAd _‘O ’
-

130 Lo 31

a3asn ._..Oz el

NOILI3IS FHNSOTINT 60

T LN R
OO N
ane
L oo
o OFY 0T um
w1 monTd
o

Tn2d urcm ro—

‘EROLVD [ SHLAU I A
UL ) TVHE TV T
T2 1IN BT O

aasn ._.02 i

BTG 00 NI ML B0

HLBAIS) V3 T 4H0ME et

2049 ovamz—
staawn
/ KanmoL
T
IR ST R
ErEr ]

T KT 0 TE
For)

LEREELEeRRE] 49

LNIWGINDI T¥IdLI313 O —\

AZT3 HNSOTONT 20

agsn ._..OZ g _‘

OILvd @ LNOdSNMGA ol

Y130 30NZH % NOILDAS NWNTDD F r

02

. ¥ £33
. W bz N
(S WRIOWION K

LAkl Oy (37va

)

[P =)

Nz 268 /n =
b e FEATE

s )
Prie et

AT FHNSOTINTG 14Y

N ks v B
)

sy
i emm2

Y130 150d 31vo S0

LI >




SPIS BUping 8w oS %907 Gt

rRIONSOURIesIY

RSB0 LUNGD QOOMYIAIRDIVYORION LUNOS QOOMEIAAL 1O

'
8p[s sbeJeb Woy 300 Og /n_n\







PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
FINAL REPORT OF FINDINGS AND
RECOMMENDATION

TO: MONTGOMERY MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
FROM: PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

cC: RICHARD TRAMM, CITY ADMINISTRATOR
DAVE MCCORQUODALE, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: FINAL REPORT CONCERNING A PROPOSED RECLASSIFICATION OF
LOT 16, AREA D, MONTGOMERY TOWNSITE SECTION FOUR, A 0.576-ACRE PARCEL
OF LAND IN MONTGOMERY, TEXAS FROM R1-SNGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL AND B-
COMMERCIAL TO SOLELY B-COMMERCIAL AS REQUESTED BY CHRISTIAN C AND
MARY CHEATHAM.

Mayor and Members of City Council,

Pursuant to Sections 98-30 and 98-53 of the City of Montgomery Code of Ordinances {“the
Code”), the Montgomery Planning and Zoning Commission met on February 24, 2020 and again
on March 3, 2020 to consider a request from Cheatham Management to reclassify the entire
property B-Commercial. A map of the property with the current zoning overlay is attached here
as Exhibit "A.”

After a second duly-noticed public hearing with an opportunity for public comments concerning
the requested rezoning classification, the Commission at its January 7th meeting thereby found:

¢ The property currently split has two zoning classifications: B-Commercial and R1-Single-
Family Residential.

e The rezoning request for the entire parcel to be B-Commercial is consistent with other
developments in the vicinity.

¢ The commission found it is not contrary to the interest of the community to reclassify the
land use zoning designation of the said tract to entireiy B-Commercial.













MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
February 285, 2020
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Sara Countryman declared a quorum was present and called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Present: Sara Countryman Mayor
T.J. Wilkerson City Council Place # 3
Rebecca Huss City Council Place # 4
Tom Cronin City Council Place # 5
Absent: John Champagne, Jr.  City Council Place # 2
Vacant City Council Place #1
Also Present; Richard Tramm City Administrator
Susan Hensley City Secretary
Larry Foerster City Attorney
INVOCATION

T.J. Wilkerson gave the Invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

Mr, Christopher Ward, with Boy Scout Troop 161 of Willis, led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flags.

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to speaking,

each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. City Council may not discuss or take any action on an item

but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time allowed per speaker

may be fimited.
Mr. Ward advised he was participating in the meeting as part of earning his community badge and becoming

an Eagle Scout. Mr. Ward said he had lived in Willis and moved to Montgomery about a year ago, though




he decided to stay with his Troop in Willis and continue with earning his badge. Mayor Countryman asked

if this was his first City Council Meeting. Mr. Ward said it was his first Council Meeting in Montgomery.

Mayor Countryman welcomed Mr. Ward to the meeting.

CONSENT AGENDA:

1. Matters related to the approval of minutes of the Regular Meeting held on February 11, 2020,

2. Consideration and possible action regarding Certificate of Acceptance for the FEMA Atkins Creek

Water, Sanitary Sewer, and Storm Sewer Repairs Project.

Tom Cronin moved to accept the Consent Agenda as presented. Rebecca Huss seconded the

motion.

Discussion: Rebecca Huss thanked the City Secretary for the thoroughness of the minutes, stating

she thought it captured particularly the discussion on the MUD issue, which they will probably

circle back to at some point so it will be nice to have that so well represented.

The motion carried unanimously. (3-0)

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

3. Consideration and possible action on Department Reports,

A,

Administrator’s Report — Mr. Tramm presented his report to City Council, stating that due

to the amount of work on the agenda, he has asked all the Department Heads to keep their
reports brief, but if City Council has questions they are available to answer them, Mr.
Tramm advised they will have the active shooter training for City staff at 9 a.m. tomorrow,
stating that City Council is more than welcome to attend. Mr. Tramm also noted the annual
audit is nearing completion, but it was not done in time for this meeting. Mr. Tramm said
he is expecting to present the audit at the next meeting. Mr. Tramm said Saturday, March
21, 2020, the City is asking residents and businesses to display the Texas Flag because the
City is trying to challenge the Spirit of Texas Bank for the second year. Mayor Countryman
said the flags are being sold at City Hall. Mr. Tramm said they have several boxes of flags
and they are selling them for $5.00 each.

Rebecca Huss asked about the audit, and whether they were still adhering to the schedule

that was set out because the City’s bond rating is very important to us. Rebecca Huss said

02/25/20 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 2




providing a timely unqualified audit, with no issues, is an important component of keeping
the City’s bond rating. Mr. Tramm said it is his understanding that they are on schedule at
this point but said he would be having that conversation with the auditor, Mr, Tramm said
there were no significant items that have been brought to his attention. Rebecca Huss said
there are no items because there are no issues, but the overall market relies on the audit and

the timeliness of the audit is very important. Mr. Tramm said he understood.

B.  Public Works Report — Mr, Mike Muckleroy presented his report to City Council, with no

additional comments,

C.  Police Department Report — Police Chief Solomon presented his report to City Council,

Mayor Countryman said she had received a text today from a citizen curious about patrol
on SH 105 in the 35 miles per hour zone, and said they feel it is not being adhered to.
Mayor Countryman said she sees officers at that location often but said if they can, put a
little bit more attention there. Mayor Countryman said she also received a telephone call
from a citizen about Lone Star Bend and it seems we are having high school students
speeding. Chief Solomon said it is interesting that Mayor Countryman mentioned both of
those areas because he had a citizen call today about a citation that they received in the SH
105 area going 58-60 miles an hour in the 35 miles per hour zone. Chief Solomon said
Sergeant Hernandez’s job is to do traffic initiatives, and those are the areas that he is
working on. Mayor Countryman said the officers are doing an excellent job. Mayor
Countryman said she did want to speak to Mr. Muckleroy about doing speed humps or
something around Lone Star Bend if the Chief thinks that would be something they could
consider. Chief Solomon said he did not think speed humps were the answer and asked

the Mayor to give them a chance to be out there and work the area to see if it works.

D.  Court Department Report ~ Mrs. Kimberly Duckett, Court Administrator, presented her
report to City Council. Mrs. Duckett advised they had 184 cases with $23,063.40 in

collections.

John Champagne arrived at the meeting at 6:09 p.m.

E.  Utility/Development Repott - Mr, Tramin presented the Utility/Development Report to

City Council. Mr. Tramm said they have done some minor category changes to the report

to provide a better explanation, so they have less miscellancous items, Mr. Tramm said

02/25/20 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 3




one of the larger items that had been previously included in the misceilaneous category
was escrow agreement funds. Mr. Tramm said when the escrow payments come in, they
can be $5,000 or more dollars, so that made the miscellancous figure look unusually high.

Mr. Tramm said for this month there were no escrow account payments.

Rebecca Huss asked what reimbursements included. Mr. Tramm said reimbursements are
when an employee had to provide payment back to the City, such as an employee that was

out for workers comp who had to pay child support and possibly health insurance coverage.

Mr, Tramm said under the arrear’s category, the number of accounts in the 60-day range is
growing because they have discovered, with the new utility clerk, there were some issues
with those accounts. Mr. Tramm said while the number of accounts grew, the dollar
amount associated with them did not and they are getting those items cleared up, Mr.
Tramm said he thought both numbers will go down. Mr. Tramm said there were some
accounts that had been allowed to collect fees even though there was no service being
provided, so those are in the process of getting cleared up. Mr. Tramm said under the
120+Days category, he has received guidance from the auditor and when they finish the

audit, they will be finishing this, which will show up in the March Report.

Rebecca Huss asked if Mr, Tramm would discuss the 200+ late notices sent out even
though we knew that we were not getting mail. Mr, Tramm said the primary issue they
had was the Post Office getting all the City’s mail forwarded. Mr. Tramm said they have
requested that the utility billing go out and reflect the new mailing address for the City.
Mr. Tramm said before they forwarded the mail from the Post Office Box to City Hall, we
were assured by the Post Office that this would be a seamless process. Mr. Tramm said
after they had the mail switched to the new address, it has worked out to be far less seamless
than it should have been. Mr, Tramm said they have been telling people as we have talked
to them, if they mailed their payment and it just has not gotten to the City through no fault
of their own, the City will be waiving the late charges. Rebecca Huss said it seems like
200 late notices are such a large number of late notices compared to our outstanding
collections normally, and why did those notices even go out, why did we waste the stamps.
Mayor Countryman asked if they were automatic, or how does the City not know they are
doing 200 late notices. Mr. Tramm said that it is an automated process and they also have
a new clerk, so it might have been they just did not have the education curve on that. Mr.

Tramm said he would take the hit on that,

02/25/20 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 4




Tom Cronin asked about the Community Building and if Mr. Tramm had noticed a decline
in free rentals since the City started charging everyone for use of the facility. Mr. Tramm
said they have had some requests for discounting the use fee, which they have declined and
said he felt they have had less actual requests, while they still have some groups they are
still working with that have been there in the past and they understand there is a new policy.
Mr. Tramm said now that they have taken on Cedar Brake Park, they are seeing those

rentals.

Mayor Countryman commented that she has received compliments on the new person at

the Utility window.

Water Report — Mr. Michael Williams, with Gulf Utility Service, Inc., presented his
report to City Council. Mr, Williams said the water accountability was still at 96% and
all the plants were in compliance. Rebecca Huss said she thought that was from 2019
year-to-date, and we are in 2020. Mr. Williams said that was correct, the permit was for
the calendar year of 2019 and 2020 starts a new permit. Mr, Williams said that was
requested by City Council to see how we did on the permit over the course of the year and
then they can use that information for 2020. Rebecca Huss said they could have looked at
it in December and found that information, but they will just have it here as a marker. Mr.

Williams said that was cotrect,

Financia] Report and Sales Tax Report — Mr. Tramm advised that Mrs, Cathy Branco,

Financial Consuitant with Municipal Accounts would be presenting the Financial Report.
Mr, Tramm said Mrs, Branco has been working on the City’s financial items for roughly
15-years and she is retiring from Municipal Accounts, so she wanted the opportunity to

address City Council.

Mrs. Branco said she had a couple of items to bring to City Council’s attention. Mrs.
Branco said a CD came due on February 1, 2020, and that CD was reinvested at Third
Coast Bank at [.8% and will come due on July 30, 2020. Mrs, Branco said the debt service
is due on March 1, 2020, and those payments that are due will be transferred to the checking
account tomorrow and those payments will go out no later than Friday morning, which she

will have signed and ready to go.

02/25/20 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 5




Mrs, Branco said she wanted to tell City Council that she has enjoyed working with all of
them and it has been a fun trip, adding that she wished she did not have to leave, but it is
that time. Mrs. Branco said she has a bucket list and she is trying to find something that
both she and her husband can do because her husband is a disabled veteran so she wants to
make sure it is something that he will be comfortable and not have to walk too much. Mrs.

Branco said she is thinking about doing a train trip.

Mayor Countryman thanked Mrs. Branco for her service. Rebecca Huss thanked Mrs,
Branco and said she had taken the City through some tough times when the finances were
not always so rosy and said she has been a steady rock through some really tough times.
Rebecca Huss said she appreciated Mrs. Branco’s professionalism and dedication to the
City, not just as a third party, but as a member of our community. Mrs. Branco thanked

everyone and said Montgomery has been a wonderful family that has taken good care of
her.

John Champagne asked about the year-to-date budget on sales tax and actual, on page 10
of the report, page 69 of the agenda pack. John Champagne said he wanted a brief
explanation on a disparity. Mr. Tramm said he could not specifically give an answer
without looking at the information. John Champagne said he was not causing any alarm;
it is just there is a reason, Rebecca Huss said January is not a quarterly reporting period
for the grocery stores, which are big, and the $733,000 is the total amount of the quarter
percent of sales tax in lieu of ad valorem tax, so for whatever reason, they are not including
that part and has not been allocated in there. John Champagne said ad valorem was
accounted for above that figure. Rebecca Huss said correct, but that was the extra 4
percent of the sales tax, and she does not know why that is not in there. John Champagne
said what he was hearing is we have a disparity of $733,000 because of grocery stores.
Rebecca Huss said no, what she was saying is they should have 1/4 percent of the sales tax
that is either included in line item 14600 or it is just not included at all, so they either have
a discrepancy of $640,221.22 or just the $92,788.78 that could be a quarterly reporting
problem. John Champagne asked Mr, Tramm to provide an email later in the week with
the explanation. Mr. Tramm said he would get with the Financial Consultant and get a

better answer for City Council.

Mr, Tramm said with Mrs. Branco leaving, the City’s contractor Municipal Accounts is

working with us to provide another person to transition over. Mr, Tramm advised they are

02/25/20 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 6




also bringing on as of March 16, 2020, a financial professional on staff to take over the
bulk of the work, and they will start transitioning to have less done by Municipal Accounts.
Mr. Tramm said he was not sure exactly where that would end, but Municipal Accounts is

aware that is going to happen.

Mr. Tramm said the Sales Tax Report was not available when the agenda packs went out,

but they received the report yesterday, so it has been provided.

Engineer’s Report — Mr. Chris Roznovsky, City Engineer, presented his report to City

Council. Mr. Roznovsky advised the two Baja Projects are finally complete as far as what
was in the grant. Mr. Roznovsky said he has gotten the initial pricing for where Baja and
MLK meet to fill in the corner, so it will be flat versus having the steep drop off there at
the corner, Mr. Roznovsky said they did receive the pricing for closing out the timeline on
the grant part of it, and then getting back out there. Mayor Countryman asked if the berm
down Baja was going to happen as well. Mr. Roznovsky said it is the same as the other
one. Mayor Countryman said she wanted to make sure that it did not get left off. Mr.
Roznovsky said the bulk of the work is done, with those items still outstanding so they are

working on the final closeout documents for the grant.

Mr. Roznovsky said the Downtown Waterline Replacement Project is currently bidding
and they held a pre-bid meeting this morning. Mr. Roznovsky said the bids will be received

on March 16", so they will be presented at the second meeting in March,

Mr, Roznovsky said they have received the comments from the Water Development Board
regarding the Water Plant Improvements. Mr. Roznovsky said the TORC has reviewed

the information and they will be meeting next week to go through the comments,

Mr. Roznovsky said the Sanitary Sewer Lift Station Replacement Project is approximately
78% complete by time and 34% complete by value as of January 27, 2020, and they have
a contract end date of March 7, 2020, so they will be late and they don’t expect to be
substantially complete until May 2020. Mr. Roznovsky said the whole City is currently on
bypass, which it has been since this started, and is designed to handle everything in the

City, so this does not affect the ability to develop.

02/25/20 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 7




Mr. Roznovsky said they have one new development, which is Starbucks, who is coming
into The Shoppes Center, where they will have CVS, Chick-Fil-A, a retail center and
Starbucks.

Mr. Roznovsky said Emma’s Way had their one-year warranty inspection this past month
and they are going to get their punch list items addressed. Mr, Roznovsky said the Hills of
Town Creek, Section 3 and Emma’s Way are two separate projects, so this project covers
from Emma’s Way where it ended to the new ending and a sewer line that wraps all the
way around, Mr, Roznovsky said they also had the bridge waterline one-year warranty

inspection, where no punch fist items were found.

Mr. Roznovsky said the turn lane on SH 105, TxDOT has stated they received the appraisal
and they are reviewing the appraisal and preparing the legal documents. John Champagne
asked who they received the appraisal from. Mr. Roznovsky said TxDOT hired an
appraiser to provide an appraisal for TxDOT of that corner piece that the City wants to

donate.

Rebecca Huss said, as a note, regarding the financials, the MEDC Budget that is only sales
tax, is running $40,000 over budget and the sales tax assumptions for MEDC are driven
completely by the City’s sales tax assumptions. Rebecca Huss said MEDC is over budget
on a simple one-line item, then the City sales tax number should not be under budget by a
large number. Rebecca Huss said there is something missing in the City sales tax number.
John Champagne asked when Rebecca Huss says over budget, does that mean they have a
surplus. Rebecca Huss said that is correct, instead of the budget being $194,500, which is
what the original assumption was, MEDC is at $234,867. John Champagne asked if they
were over budget in revenue. Rebecca Huss said that was correct. Rebecca Huss said
MEDC’s revenue is the exact same sales tax that is calculated for the City. Mr. Tramm
said he will go over with Mrs. Branco regarding that information because it certainly seems

like something is wnissing.

Rebecca Huss moved to approve the Departmental Reports as presented, Tom Cronin seconded

the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

4. Consideration and possible action regarding the award of the Contract for IT Provider Services for

the City of Montgomery and authorize the City Administrator to execute the contract.

02/25/20 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 8




Mr. Tramm advised the City sent out RFP’s for I'T Services, which four responses were received,
while they did have one company that came out to tour the property chose not to submit a proposal.
Mr, Tramm advised a staff committee consisting of the City Administrator, Assistant City
Administrator, and City Secretary reviewed the submissions. Mr, Tramm said the review included
their base service, response times, staff sizing, ability to properly handle the City’s software and
hardware needs and rates for included services and hourly services. Mr. Tramm said in looking at
the billing done by the outgoing IT Provider, it was their determination, as a collective group, that

Optimum Computer Solutions, Inc. was the best match for the City’s needs for IT Services,

John Champagne asked about the group that came out and assessed visually and chose not to submit
a bid and asked if they said why. Mr. Tramm said they stated they did not feel they had the
experience with the criminal justice software, which was the reason they choose not to bid. Mr.
Tramm said there are separate servers for City and Police. Mr, Tramm said he did respect them for
choosing not to submit a bid. Rebecca Huss asked if there are any services being provided that the
City did not previously have. Mr. Tramm said Optimum pulls all their services into their base rate,
which we were paying hourly. Mr, Tramm said with GTIN they could pay up to $500 for a new
computer set up. Mayor Countryman asked if anyone has had any experience with Optimum or if
they talked to any other municipalities that had worked with them. Mr. Tramm said the City
Secretary has had some direct experience with Optimum. Mayor Countryman said she was

assuming that feedback was positive. Mr. Tramm said yes.
John Champagne moved to authorize the City Administrator to execute an IT Service Agreement
with Optimum Computer Services LLC. Rebecca Huss seconded the motion, the motion carried

unanimously. (4-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding requesting an opinion from the Planning and Zoning

Commission and City Engineer for the following variance requests to the Subdivision Ordinance

for the proposed West Lakes residential development along Old Dobbin-Plantersville Road, in the
City’s ETJ, as submitted by Promocon USA, L1.C:

a. alot width variance request of S0-feet instead of the required 75-feet; and

b. a minimum lot size of 6,000 square feet instead of the required 9,000 square feet.

02/25/20 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 9




Mr. Tramm said there are two separate items there, one is the lot width variance and lot size. Mr.
Tramm said with variance requests to the Subdivision Ordinance there is no public hearing

required. Mr. Tramm said he could review the lengthy description if City Council so chooses.

Rebecca Huss said what they did not include was the fact that we have discussed this in the past,
and the City Engineer provided information on this and we discussed at length the issues involved
with not being the providers of water to residents of the City that we were responsible for in all
other respects and moraily. Rebecca Huss said she has serious qualms about the issue and she is
not comfortable, and with all of these variances aside, to her, the most important issue is she is not
going to be comfortable with this subdivision under any circumstances unless they come to the City
with the CCN where the City is the water provider. Rebecca Huss said she did not see the logistical
issues being something that she would want to deal with and the safety issues of having citizens
that we are not the provider of their water quality. Rebecca Huss said we are not providers of their
safety in terms of water pressure in the case of an emergency or the water quality that people would
like in terms of turning the water for their showers and the pressure that they prefer. Rebecca Huss
said they would have no ability, as the City has, for customer service to do anything about it
Rebecca Huss said if someone cailed City Hall and says they are a resident and want the City to do

something about it, we would have to say we are sorry and tell them to call the provider.

Mayor Countryman said she too has a concern, if there is a fire, because there have been fires out
there, and there is no way to get water or they have low water pressure, these houses are so dense,

Mayor Countryman said this is a serious question and a serious issue.

Mr. Tramm said what he could say from his personal experience in the past, he has experience with
utilities overlapping. Mr. Tramm said it does lead to confusion on the part of the bill payer because
the customer feels that they are contacting the City about their bill or complaint with regards to the
water, and in this particular development, they would not provide water service, which can leave a
customer feeling the City was not caring about their concerns, as opposed to trying to point them
to another entity because we would not provide that service. Mr. Tramm said where he worked
previously some of the customers that received water through another provider, they were always
arguing about who was providing what service, and the customer ended up feeling like they were

caught in the middle and they are the ones paying the bill.

02/25/20 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 10




Rebecca Huss said there is the other issue of what if the City does not get accurate information
about water consumption, should they go through with this idea and then they can’t build the homes,
the City would be providing service for free because we can’t send out a bili. Rebecca Huss said
what if the City billed them a flat rate where everyone gets a bill for $150, that does not seem very
fair because if somebody does not have a very high usage they would still pay the highest rate that
is on average of what we think it will cost to provide service. Rebecca Huss said what if we are
wrong, then the rest of our residents pay for the shortfall, which is something that we have tried to
have our prices set to the point of having customer bills reflect the cost of providing service, so if
we are making an average assumption, some will be paying too much and some will not be paying
enough. Rebecca Huss said this is something the developer does not care about because they will
be putting houses in place, then the City will have to sort out the problems and the developer will
be gone, and our residents will not be happy. Rebecca Huss said she is not willing to go forward
until they have the CCN and we are all on the same page where the City provides the water and

sewer, and accountable for their safety and health, which is what we do for all of our residents.

Mr. Tramm said this is being presented and if City Council desires to move forward with the process
and wants to give him that kind of direction, he will be happy to go back to the developer. Mayor

Countryman said that would be all services or nothing direction.

John Champagne asked if in the ETJ Dobbin Plantersville will provide the water service. Mayor
Countryman said yes. Mr, Tramm said this area is in the ETJ, while there are certain requirements
for the City, they fall outside of the City’s water service area. Mr. Tramm stated they are in the
Dobbin Plantersville Water Company service area. John Champagne asked to confirm that Dobbin
Plantersville wants to provide water services, Mr. Tramm said he has not discussed that with
Dobbin Plantersville. Rebecca Huss said the developer wants to be annexed into the City, John
Champagne asked what the value to them was to be annexed into the City if we are not providing
water services. John Champagne said he would assume that we are not going to provide the sewer
services. Rebecca Huss said the City will have to provide the sewer service. John Champagne
asked to confirm the biggest concern was, besides the morality of it, the variances. Rebecca Huss
said no, to her the practicality and morality are her biggest issues, the variances come later. Rebecca
Huss said there is no point in discussing variances until you know whether you can put together

something that even lets you take that first step.

John Champagne asked what the problem would be in letting the Planning and Zoning Commission

look at this development. Rebecca Huss said it would be a waste of everyone’s time and money

02/25/20 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 11




because the developer must go through the process, and we are spending staff time. John

Champagne asked why we would not be able to charge them for the sewer they are using. Rebecca

Huss said it would not be our meter, there would be no meter unless Dobbin Plantersville gives it
to the City, and they are using meters that are compatible with the City’s system. Rebecca Huss

said the City has Badger meters, so they do not have to do manual meter reads. John Champagne

asked if Rebecca Huss did not believe the cost and benefit would be worth it. Rebecca Huss said
no she did not see the point of it until they come to the City with a CCN, then morality won’t be an
issue and most of her practical issues will go away, then it will be an issue of whether it fits with

Planning and Zoning Commission map for the City where they have higher density housing.

Mr. Foerster said apparently, they have not gone back to the Dobbin Plantersville Water Company
to try and negotiate this issue. Rebecca Huss said it was not the City’s job to do that it is the
developer’s job because it is their development, Mr, Foerster said he understood that, but maybe
we need to be telling them what they need to do. Rebecca Huss said that is what they are telling
Mr, Tramm to do. Mr, Tramm said whatever City Council decides, that will be what he is taking

from this discussion as his direction. Mayor Countryman said they need to get the CCN.

Rebecca Huss asked if that directive would take care of Agenda [tems 5 and 6. Mr. Tramm said he

believed it would, Mayor Countryman said they would strike Item 6.

6, Consideration and possible action regarding calling a Public Hearing of the City Council, acting as

the Board of Adiustment, for the following variance requests to the Zoning Ordinance for the

proposed West Lakes residential development along Old Dobbin-Plantersville Road, in the City’s
ETJ. as subimitted by Promocon USA, LLC:

a. aminimum side vard setback of 5-feet instead of the required 10-feet; and

b. a side vard setback of 10-feet for corner lots instead of the required 13-feet.

No action was taken on this item,

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or for

any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the

qualifications_in Sections 551.07{consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real

property).551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation

02/25/20 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 12



regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations) of

Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the Ste of Texas.

7. Adjourn into Closed Executive Session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter

551 of the Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in the following:

a) Section 551.071 (consultation with attorney); and

by Section 551.072 (deliberation regarding real property): and

c) Section 551.074 (personnel matters) Interview City Attorney Candidates.

Mayor Countryman adjourned the meeting to go inte Executive Session at 6:43 p.m.

Reconvene into Open Session.

Mayor Countryman reconvened the meeting at 8:57 p.m.

POSSIBLE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION:

8. Consideration and possible action(s), if necessary, on matter(s) deliberated in Closed Executive

Session.

Rebecca Huss moved to direct the City Administrator to retain the legal services of the law firm of
Johnson Petrov and request an Engagement Letter to be submitted to said City Administrator, Tom

Cronin seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

COUNCIL INQUIRY:

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect, 551.042 the Mayor and Council Members may inquire about a

subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy or a

statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or decision shall

be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting,

Mayor Countryman and City Council thanked the attorneys for being present.

ADJOURNMENT

John Champagne moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:00 p.m. T.J. Wilkerson seconded the motion, the

motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

02/25/20 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 13











































AGREEMENT

ARTICLE I

SERVICES REQUIRED

Section 1.01 The development of the Montgomery Townhotnes Tract will require the

City to utilize its own personnel, its professionals and consultants; and the Escrow Fund will be
used to reimburse the City its costs associated with these services.

Section 1.02 In the event other contract services are required related to the development
from third parties, payment for such services will be made by the City and reimbursed by the
Developer or paid directly by the Developer as the parties may agree.

ARTICLEII

FINANCING AND SERVICES

Section 2.01  All estimated costs and professional fees needed by City shall be financed
by Developer. Developer agrees to advance funds to City for the purpose of funding such costs as

herein set out:

Administrative $1,000
City Engineer $4,000
Legal $1,000
TOTAL $6,000

Section 2.02  Developer agrees to submit payment of the Escrow Fund no later than ten
(10) days after the execution of this Escrow Agreement. No work will begin by or on behalf of the
City until funds have been received,

Section 2.03  The total amount shown above for the Escrow Fund is intended to be a “Not
to Exceed” amount unless extenuating, unexpected fees are needed. Examples of extenuating

Page 2




circumstances created by the developer that may cause additional fees include, but are not limited
to, greater than three plan reviews or drainage analysis reviews, revisions to approved plans;
extraordinary number of comments on plans; additional meetings at the request of the developer;
variance requests; encroachment agreement requests; construction delays and/or issues; failure to
coordinate construction with City; failed testing during construction; failing to address punch list
items; and/or excessive warranty repair items. If extenuating circomstances arise, the Developer
will be informed, in writing by the City, of the additional deposit amount and explanation of
extenuating circumstance. The Developer agrees to tender additional sums within 10 days of
receipt of request to cover such costs and expenses. If additional funds are not deposited within 10
days all work by or on behalf of the City will stop until funds are deposited. Any funds which may
remain after the completion of the development described in this Escrow Agreement will be
refunded to Developer.
ARTICLE II1,

MISCELLANEQUS

Section 3.01  City reserves the right to enter into additional contracts with other persons,
corporations, or political subdivisions of the State of Texas;, provided, however, that City
covenants and agrees that it will not so contract with others to an extent as to impair City's ability
to perform fully and punctually its obligations under this Escrow Agreement.

Section 3,02 If either party is rendered unable, wholly or in part, by force majeure to
carry out any of its obligations under this Escrow Agreement, then the obligations of such party,
to the extent affected by such force majeure and to the extent that due diligence is being used to

resume performance at the earliest practicable time, shall be suspended during the continuance of

Page 3




any inability so caused to the extent provided but for no longer period. As soon as reasonably
possible after the occurrence of the force majeure relied upon, the party whose contractual
obligations are affected thereby shall give notice and full particulars of such force majeure relied
upon to the other party. Such cause, as far as possible, shall be remedied with all reasonable
diligence. The term "“force majeure," as used herein, shall include without limitation of the
generality thereof, acts of God, strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances, acts of the public
enemy, orders of any kind of the government of the United States or the State of Texas or any civil
or military authority, insurrections, riots, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires,
hurricanes, storms, floods, washouts, droughts, arrests, restraint of government and people, civil
disturbances, explosions, breakage, or accidents to machinery, which are not within the control of
the party claiming such inability, which such party could not have avoided by the exercise of due
diligence and care.

Section 3.03  This Escrow Agreement is subject to all rules, regulations and laws which
may be applicable by the United States, the State of Texas or any regulatory agency having
jurisdiction.

Section 3.04 No waiver or waivers of any breach or default (or any breaches or defauits)
by either party hereto of any term, covenant, condition, or liability hereunder, or of performance
by the other party of any duty or obligation hereunder, shall be deemed or construed to be a waiver
of subsequent breaches or defaults of any kind, under any circumstance.

Section 3.05 = Any notice, communication, request, reply or advice (hereafter referred to
as "notice") herein provided or permitted to be given, made, or accepted by either party to the other

{except bills) must be in writing and may be given or be served by depositing the same in the

Page 4




United States mail postpaid and registered or certified and addressed to the party to be notified,
with return receipt requested, or by delivering the same to an officer of such party. Notice
deposited in the mail in the manner herein above described shall be conclusively deemed to be
effective, unless otherwise stated in this Escrow Agreement, from and after the expiration of seven
(7) days after it is so deposited. Notice given in any other manner shall be effective only when
received by the party to be notified. For the purpose of notice, the addresses of the patties shall,
until changed as hereinafter provided, by as follows:
If to City, to: City Administrator
City of Montgomery
101 Old Plantersviile Rd.
Montgomery, Texas 77356
If to Developer, to: Tony Cook
PO Box 7633
The Woodlands, Texas 77387

The parties shall have the right from time to time and at any time to change their respective
addresses, and each shall have the right to specify as its address any other address by at least fifteen
(15) days written notice to the other party.

Section 3.06 This Escrow Agreement shall be subject to change or modification only in
writing and with the mutual consent of the governing body of City and the management of
Developer.

Section 3.07 This Escrow Agreement shall bind and benefit City and its {egal successors
and Developer and its legal successors but shall not otherwise be assignable, in whole or in part,

by either party except as specifically provided herein between the parties or by supplemental

agreement,

Page 5




Section 3.08 This Escrow Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of City
and Developer and is not for the benefit of any third party. Nothing herein shall be construed to
confer standing to sue upon any party who did not otherwise have such standing.

Section 3.09 The provisions of this Escrow Agreement are severable, and if any
provision or part of this Escrow Agreement or the application thereof to any person or
circumstances shall ever be held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or
unconstitutional for any reason, the remainder of this Escrow Agreement and the application of
such provision or part of this Escrow Agreement to other person circumstances shall not be
affected thereby.

Section 3.10 This Escrow Agreement and any amendments thereto, constitute all the
agreements between the parties relative to the subject matter thereof, and may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original.

Section 3.11 This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in
accordance with, and subject to, the laws of the State of Texas without regard to the principles of
conflict of laws. This Agreement is performable in Montgomery County, Texas.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Escrow Agreement in
three (3) copies, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, as of the date and year first

written in this Escrow Agreement.

Page 6










Prohibition on Boycotting Israel Verification

This Verification is hereby incorporated into the terms of the contract by and between
City of Montgomery  4nq Anthony Cook  entered into this the_7th _day of._Februga,

2020.

1. Anthony Cook iy conjunction with the execution of the above referenced
contract and in accordance with Chapter 2270 of the Texas Government Code, effective
September 1, 2017, does hereby agree, confirm, and verify thatit:

A. Does not Boycott Israel; and
B. Will not Boycott Israel during the term of thecontract.

"Boycott Israel" has the meaning given to it in Chapter 808 of Subtitle A, Title 8 of the
Texas Government Code. As of the effective date of the statute, the term means "refusing
to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is
intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically
with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled
territory, but does not include an action make for ordinary businesspurposes.”

2. Contractor hereby acknowledges and agrees that this verification is a material term of the
contract and Owner is expressly relying on this verification in agreeing to enter into the
contract with Contractor.

3. TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, CONTRACTOR AGREES
TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND HOLD HARMLESS OWNER FROM ALL
CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS, DAMAGES, COSTS,
FEES AND EXPENSES ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO AN ACTUAL OR
ALLEGED MISREPRESENTATION BY CONTRACTOR PROVIDED
HEREUNDER,

[Signatures on Following Page]
















DOC #2019001945
Pages 4

GF No. ATCH-16-ATCH18084352TC

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY
REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM ANY
INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS
FILED FOR RECORD IN THE FUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR
YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER.

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED
Date: January i, 2019
Grantor: Neal McCraw, his sole and separate property
Grantee; David H. Holle, Trustee of the Holle Trust dated August 1, 2008
Grantee's Mailing Address:
Yo Box 244
“Spolund: NG 7.8 Ve
Congsideration: v

Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00), good and other valuable consideration, the receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged

Praperty (including any improvements):

Being 2.3851 acres (103,895 square feet) of land, situated in the John Corner Survey, Abstract
Number 8 in Montgomery County, Texas and being out of the residual acreage of that certain called
734.721 acre tract as conveyed to Philip Lefevre and wife, Holly Lefevre, recorded under Clerk's
File Number 99058838 Real Property Records of Montgomery County, Texas; said 2.3851 acres
being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows with all bearings referenced to
the South line of the RTL Management Group LLC, Tract 3, a called 4.17 acre tract recorded under
Clerk's File Number 2015036164 Real Property Records, as found monumented on the ground:

BEGINNING at an iron rod with a survey cap marked "Moon", found for the Northwest comer of
the herein degscribed tract and the Southwest corner of the called 4.17 acre tract, and being in the
East line of Plez Morgan, a variable width right-of-way as recorded under Cletk's File Number
20100030945 Real Property Records;

THENCE North 87°28'36" East, a distance of 593.94 feet along the South line of the called 4.17
acre tract, to a 5/8 inch iron rod with a survey cap marked "Glezman, RPLS 4627", set for the
Northeast corner of the herein described tract and being further located South 87°28'36" West, a
distance of 160.02 feet from an iron rod with a cap marked "Moon", found for the Southeast corner
of called 4.17 acre tract;

THENCE in a Southwesterly direction along the center line of a 16 foot wide Sanitary Sewer
Basement, severing the residual acreage of the called 734.721 acre tract as follows:

Page 1 of 3 FILED BY

[Sv5 Y252 ALAMO TITLE COMPANY

(HOUSTON)




GF No. ATCH-16-ATCHI18084352TC

South 49°49'29" West, a distance of 168.68 feet to a sewer manhole, found at an angle point;
South 59°58'03" West, a distance of 331.53 feet to a sewer manhole, found at an angle point;

North 73°34'39" West, a distance of 252.04 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with survey cap, set for the
Southwest corner of the herein described tract and being in a curve to the left in the East line of
Plez Morgan;

THENCE along the East line of Plez Morgan along a curve to the left, having as its elements: a
central angle of 15°59'31", a radius of 678.03 feet, an arc length of 189.25 feet and a chord bearing
North 19°55'33" East, 188.63 feet back to the Point of Beginning and containing 2.3851 acres of
land, based on the survey and plat prepared by Glezman Surveying, Inc., dated July 21, 2016.

Reservations from Conveyance: None

Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty:  Subject to all easements, right-of-ways, mineral
reservations and other matters of record:

Grantor, for the Consideration and subject to the Reservations from Conveyance and the Exceptions
to Conveyance and Warranty, grants, sells, and conveys to Grantee the Property, together with all and
singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in any way belonging, to have and to hold it to Grantee and
Grantee's heirs, successors, and assigns forever, Grantor binds Grantor and Grantor's heirs and successors
to warrant and forever defend all and singular the Property to Grantee and Grantee's heirs, successors, and
assigns against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof, except
as to the Reservations from Conveyance and the Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty.

GRANTEE IS TAKING THE PROPERTY IN AN ARM'S-LENGTH AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE PARTIES. THE CONSIDERATION WAS BARGAINED ON THE BASIS OF AN "AS 1S, WHERE
IS" TRANSACTION AND REFLECTS THE AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES THAT THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OR EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, EXCEPT THE EXPRESS
WARRANTY OF TITLE STATED ABOVE. GRANTEE HAS NOT RELIED ON ANY INFORMATION
OTHER THAN GRANTEE'S INSPECTION,

When the context requires, singular nouns and pronouns include the plural.

Neal McCraw [{ |V kﬁ
h
Date: January % , 2019

Page 2 of 3




GF No. ATCH-16-ATCHI18084352TC

STATE OF T R §

! : §

county or_MPAAS §
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me, the undersigned notary, on the 8 day

of January, 2019 by Neal McCraw. %
%8, crvsTALYoUNG Wi g

i My Nolary 1D # 129685200 Notary Public, S e of Te

o Expien January § 2022

Printed Name of Notary

My Commission Expires

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:

David H. Holle, Trustee of the Holle Trust dated August 1, 2008

o Bow 24y
““)thw\(k N Mo

Page 3 of 3




Doc #: 2019001945

E-FILED FOR RECORD
01/09/2019 11:26AM

VAN

COUNTY CLERK
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

STATE OF TEXAS,

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

| hereby certify that this instrument was e-filed in the file number
sequence on the date and time stamped herein

by me and was duly e-RECORDED in the Official Public
Records of Montgomery County, Texas.

01/09/2019

County Clerk
Montgomery County, Texas

Pages 4






CITY OF MONTGOMERY

P.O.BOX 708 MONTGOMERY, TEXAS 77356
Telephone: (4058} 597-6434 / 597-6436 / 557-6866

HUD-CODE MANUFACTURED HOMES PARK
RENEWAL/TRANSFER APPLICATION
This application is for any person desiring to renew or transfer license of a HUD-
Code Manufactured Homes Park within the city boundaries of the City of

Montgomery on or after April 20, 1999 in accordance with Ordinance No. 1999-4,

Type of Request: X Annual Renewal (Period: Year of 2020}
Transfer of License

1., Name of Applicant:
Marcy Bennett & Pat McCarty

PO Box 9692

Spring, TX 77387

2. Street Address of the Park:
Old Plantersville Rd

3. Legal Description of the Park (as it appears in the Deed Records):
BEING 5.6735 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, SITUATED

IN THE ZACHARIAH LANDRUM LEAGUE A-22, A PART

OF AND OUT OF THE JOHN M. POWELL TRACT,

RECORDED IN VOLUME 272, PAGE 159 OF THE

DEED RECORDS OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TX.

|
|
\ HUD-Code Manufactured Homes Park Renewal/Transfer Application




4. A current, accurate copy of the HUD-Code Manufactured Home Park
Register, as required by Section 4(D) and as described in Section 8(0) of
Montgomery City Ordinance 1999-4 shall be attached to this application
form.

5. A permit fee in the amount of Fifty Dollars ($50.00) shall accompany
submission of this application to the City of Montgomery.

6. Renewal of License applications must be completed and submitted to the
City of Montgomery on or before December 1% of the year preceding the
calendar year for which license renewal is being requested.

7. Atransfer of License application must be submitted to the City of
Montgomery within fifteen (15) days of the said Park having transferred
ownership to the new owner. Approved applications are valid only for the
remainder of the calendar year.

8. This application shall be considered by the City Council of the City of
Montgomery at its next eligible meeting.

9. If this application is on behalf of a carporation or limited liability company
the application must be signed by an authorized partner or officer. In the
case of a corporation, a copy of the corporate board authorization and a
copy of a “Certificate in Good Standing” from the Secretary of State (or its
equivalent) of the state in which the corporation is registered must be
attached to this application.

7 T ) 7
> 2 /0~ 3O ~/7
Signature of/Applicant v Date of Application

Marcy Bennett
Printed Name of Applicant

HUD-Code Manufactured Homes Park Renewal/Transfer Application



CITY OF MONTGOMERY

P.0.BOX 708 MONTGOMERY, TEXAS 77356
Telephone: (409) 597-6434 / 597-6866

Affidavit of Application

| do hereby affirm and certify that the information contained in the

attached HUD-Code Manufactured Homes Park Application, dated

/O~ 30 "/C? _is accurate and truthful to the best of my
knowledge.
79/)4@% ﬁmﬁ /630 /7
S:gn ure Date

Marcy Bennett
Printed Name

State of Texas
County of manr%tﬂm{’/Ml

This instrument was acknowledged before me on (Q(‘/\( ‘ éO*LCQUM by
(MNwelella oenne i

/ATy

Notar\ﬁ)ubllc Signature

PATTI L STAFFORD
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF TEXAS
MY COMM. EXP 02/04/2020
NOTARY D 413086-0

Afiidavit of Application




Cedar Crest Mobile Home Park Renewal Inspection

Date of Inspection: December 4, 2019

Inspected By: Mike Muckleroy

Entrance Signs and Street Signs: The entry atea and street signs appeared neatand in
good condition.

Appearance/Condition of Streets and Driveways Inside Park: The streets have been
repaved since last year and ate in a much-improved condition.

Appearance of Yards and Open Areas Inside Park: The atea appeared generally well
maintained and was free of loose trash and debtis.

Appearance of Individual Homes Inside Park: The individual homes appear generally
good from the outside view. Units# 10, 25 and 28 have minor skirting issues.

Code Violations/Issues Inside the Park: None were observed.

Police Calls/Issues Inside the Patk: The Police Department calls to this area are
generally in line with the calls throughout most of the City.

Inspection Determination: Recommendation is to apptove renewal with ownet
addressing the skirting issues to Units# 10, 25 and 28 in the next 90 days.



















a3asn LoN ¢l assn ._..Oz el a3asn HOZ L a3sn ._..Oz Sl QILvd @ LNOJSNAMOA 9l

—
-

5008 50sGhO—t

N B3¢ 40 \\
O BT

e /0 g 30 st 60 i Ll
QY1708 Jdid NQILD3S 31D Ha1sdWNg NOILD3AS FINSOTINT V130 FONTH 8 NOLLOFS NWNTOD

= ]

300V XM A N X DTOL

QI 30 0% Jumvged Ny vive D
Y3000l

v 2 DS A B 1
Tvaoonn e TITEN

Wl TN T 4V 21y H H

17 Sl N30 B8 U3 e 1 H
" TRIEDa 030D 0 100 HEY t i
eI 0L 2N T8 T o -

ST, rwdd e b
w3l 2 il mara
1440 LA

=
1
|

I -
il pez 1ot sy
" ] i3
wac — / A e
T N L JE— = 0.0 Dxrw
iras— [ v e s s
W ly 300
T ol W
oY ThOD TR TUB, e oraTios
04 C0VET CHEHAT I
oo TP G QXTI R
maTra | [~ iy argmves TIATOR A =it
Bk n e I a0 wmmp
— T s are—— 1k
bt =i O S
Jusra 2 Termeamonemenmen [0 H0 0% 100l RN
BV NI ™l TN AT
oI BBOKD PO TG
[t . THILVSHIDSE SHINLTEIH ey e
IWhe Al R XL L HACORTVITAIB0 T3 T WY
(00 7 Xward "' mxlm v
Lo .
—— o1 EAMEAIL TR M UM EIOE e s Py
& et A0 S PN PV HLGENS bk @ eHoT
1v13a 31vO [S—— e imososma sokkd - I ENRENERCRIETRERE]
.\ H._—MuFﬁuﬁ?—Ogmg -
PN T ]
ot ad et o i
o tonued 1 T R o
| ———sniaon /
T TS AN
=1 Gl LI | P P
TR KD 4T .
P ey
| v e Y11 %
1z ‘eamr |~ HIVD-QLWE F LR i : EAEn
e RO Nogw gl TN g
e 01 oo et freves AT BRI
Eo R T ERT) ma

]
TG AN WrTLY

FHNSOTONT J3LSJNNG L0 ’ AZTI J¥NSCTOND <0 A3 IYNSOIINT e0 A3 FHNSCTINT v0 iv13d 180d 319 S0

R

lowsanl

L)
1 ) !
Tl e TSI E

BLESA VD INe omiw F %7 ]

l\ IO AT H
Jm— @r ouipgD 47 Sk



SPIS BURiEg S0 Woid 4007 a8

apis abereB woy yoop ge @

dTEI-a0n LUN0J QOOMHUBAIL/GY IO 19N03 GOOME I/ F JUROTE0ONSOLRIRS Y




























ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL: OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS
AMENDING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS AS DEFINED IN THE CITY CODE OF
ORDINANCES CHAPTER 98, "ZONING,” FOR LOT 16, AREA D, MONTGOMERY
TOWNSITE SECTION FOUR FROM “R-1” SINGLE-FAMILY AND “B” COMMERCIAL
ZONING DISTRICTS, AS FOUND ON THE CITY’S OFFICIAL ZONING MAP TO “B”
COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION; AND TO AMEND THE
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A
REPEALING CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PASSAGE AND
PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, the City Council has passed the City of Montgomery Zoning Ordinance
providing certain rules and regulations concerning zoning within the City of Montgomery, as found
in the Code of Ordinances (“CODE”) at Chapter 98; and

WHEREAS, a portion of the Property described in attached Exhibit “A.” (the “Property™) is
currently zoned “R-1" (Single-Family) and “B” (Commercial) on the City’s Official Zoning Map;
and

WHEREAS, the Owners, Christian C and Mary Cheatham, have requested that the City
Council rezone the Property as solely “B” Commercial as authorized by Section 98-30 of the CODE;
and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted two public hearings on the
proposed zoning reclassification of the Property on February 24th, 2020; and March 3rd, 2020

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 98-30(c) of the CODE, the City Planning and Zoning
Commission has submitted a Final Report to the City Council in which it has voted to approve and
recommend that the Property be reclassified as entirely “B” Commercial consistent with its proposed
use; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was also conducted on March 10, 2020 before the City Council,
as authorized by Section 98-30(d) of the CODE, in order to consider the Final Report and the proposed
amendment of the zoning classification of the Property to; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that all notifications and other procedures required by
Section 98-30 of the CODE have been followed; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is not contrary to the interests of the
citizens of the City that the Property should be entirely reclassified as “B” Commercial Zoning.

Page -1




NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MONTGOMERY, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS THAT:

Section 1. Adoption of Recitals. The recitals in the preamble to this Ordinance are hereby adopted
as the findings and conclusions of the City Council.

Section. 2.  Amendment to the City Zoning Map. Pursuant to Section 98-30 of the Code of
Ordinances, City of Montgomery, Texas, the Official Zoning Map of the City of Montgomery is
hereby amended so that the zoning classification of the entirety of the Property located behind the
Heritage Place development as described in the attached Exhibit “A”, is reclassified as B—
Commercial.

Section 3. Codification of this Ordinance. Wherever any provision of this Ordinance provides
for the amendment of the Code of Ordinances, City of Montgomery, Texas, such provision shall
be liberally construed to provide for the codification of the specified provision and for such other
provisions of the Ordinance that the codifier in its discretion deems appropriate to codify. The
codifier may change the designation or numbering of chapters, articles, divisions or sections as
herein specified in order to provide for logical ordering of similar or related topics and to avoid
the duplicative use of chapter, article or section numbers. Neither the codification nor any
application of the codified Ordinance shall be deemed invalid on the basis of a variance in the
number or section of this Ordinance and its codified provisions. The failure to codify the specified
provisions of this Ordinance shall not affect their validity or enforcement.

Section 4. Repeals all Ordinance in Conflict with this Ordinance.

Any and all provisions of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby expressly repealed.
Section 5. Savings Clause.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be
unconstitutional, void, or invalid, the validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance shall not be
affected hereby, it being the intention of the City Council of the City of Montgomery in adopting and
of the Mayor in approving this Ordinance, that no portion hereof or provisions or regulation contained
herein shall become inoperative or fail by reason of any unconstitutionality or invalidity of any other
portion, provision or regulation.

Section 6. Effective Date.

The effective date of this Ordinance shall be upon its passage and publication.

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of , 2020

Page -2




ATTEST:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Alan P. Petrov, City Attorney

Sara Countryman, Mayor

Page - 3










Grounds Maintenance

Company Name Yearly Total Price
Green Grows Express LLC $38,000.00
3" Day Creations $42,540.00
Cody’s Lawn Service LLC $32,850.00
One Great Lawn LLC $119.900.00
Hauser Land Services $49,696.00
PVW Services $39,496.00

ROW Mowing and Lift Station Weed Control

Company Name Yearly Total Price
3™ Day Creations $53,280.00
Cody’s Lawn Service LLC $76,290.00

Hauser Land Services $79,500.06




	AGENDA - CITY COUNCIL 030620
	ITEM #1 - PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING BOA REGARDING BUILDING LINE VARIANCE
	ITEM #2 - PNZ FINAL REPORT FOR REZONING
	ITEM #3 - PUBLIC HEARING REZONING CHEATHAM TRACT
	ITEM #4 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	ITEM #5 - FREEDOM FESTIVAL STREET CLOSURE
	ITEM #6 - WINE & MUSIC FESTIVAL STREET CLOSURE
	ITEM #7 - ONE YR WARRANTY BRIDGE WATERLINE
	ITEM #8 - COOK ESCROW AGREEMENT 
	ITEM #9 - CEDAR CREST MOBILE HOME PARK
	ITEM #10 - CONFIRM SPELLING OF MCCOWN ST
	ITEM #11 - ZONING BOA ACTION ON VARIANCE
	ITEM #12 - HERITAGE III VEG BUFFER VARIANCE
	ITEM #13 - UPDATE ON MTG MUSIC & MUDBUGS
	ITEM #14 - ORD AMENDING ZONING CLASSIFICATION
	ITEM #15 - AWARD GRDS MAINTENANCE & ROW AND LIFT STA MOWING

